
RFP#21-107CSSO 
PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT 

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 
 

QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

Adult N95: Do you mean BYD brand vs. 

BYRD? 

We have purchased the BYD brands, 

however we have also purchased from 
vendors that may have other brands 

available. It may have been a typo if BYRD is 

listed as I am not familiar with that brand. 

 

I would like to know if we could draft our 

proposal not including the Air Purifiers, 
Drum Fans, Smocks, and Generators as 

those items are not in our core. We will be 

including in our proposal all information 

related to Surgical Grade Masks, Surgical 

Masks (clear), KN95, N95, Hand Sanitizer, 

Alcohol Surface Wipes and Nitrile Gloves. We 
are a specialized company in manufacturing 

and distributing Medical Supplies and PPE. I 

believe our services will be an asset for the 

School District. 

 

Yes, please do. Although we have purchased 

Purifiers, Fans, Smocks and Generators to 
accommodate our schools, we purchase more 

of the standard PPE such as masks, hand 

sanitizer, etc. 

Note the comment below from our 
Government Contract person at Veritiv, 

would avoiding the RFP process be a benefit 

to the district? Oakland USD is tied as a 

current member of 1GPA which we have a 

national contract for our full FS bundle 

including PPE. You may be able to avoid the 
RFP response if you let them know we have 

the 1GPA Contract for which they are a 

member. Attached is the current renewal 

that takes us out thru Nov 2022. 

 

We are doing the RFP process and currently 
not piggybacking on any other contracts. If 

they would like to be a part of the RFP, they 

should submit. 

Overall, how much are you trying to 
purchase? 

It is difficult to say as we do not know what 
school sites will need or if CDC guidelines 

will be changing. We have been spending 

about $1M, with a cap of $2M for all our PPE 

purchases which does include masks, hand 

sanitizer, purifiers, etc. 

 

KN95 Mask - Should these be on the CDC 
list? 

We would prefer that the KN95 masks be on 
the CDC List. However, the list continues to 

expand to include other types of masks. It 

will be based on the quality of the mask. 

 

Preston mentioned that in the call that you 

don’t need Surgical Grade Mask, could you 
please confirm? We have both Surgical Grade 

Mask and regular 3-ply disposable mask, 

We have had both surgical and 3ply masks 

as some of our departments such as Special 
Education and Nurses would prefer the 

surgical masks, level 2 or 3. Our children 



and I hope the explanation below can help 

OUSD decide better. 

masks are 3-ply and for staff that are using 

the masks as a layer of protection, the 3ply 

masks is sufficient. 
 

Do you have past tabulations or last price 

paid for items on bid? 

 

This information is not available at the time 

How much capacity does the air purifier 

need? 

(a) Whispure's specifications are up to 500 

square feet 

 

Specifications 
Dimensions & Weight. 22" 17 3/4" 11 1/2" 

Power Cord Length: 6\' Approximate 

Shipping Weight: ... 

Capacity and Electrical Requirements. 

ENERGY STAR Qualified: Yes. Capacity: 
Large Room - 500 sq. ft. Breaker Amps: ... 

Tru HEPA Filter: Yes. Odor-Absorbing Pre-

Filter: Yes. Fan Speeds: "Change Filter" 

Indicators: Yes. 

 

(b) Coway's Airmega specifications are 
various up to 1,500, 1200,  

900 square feet. 

Coway Airmega 400 room air purifier is 

designed to accommodate large room sizes 

up to 1,560 square feet and cleans the air at 
least two times per hour when used as 

recommended. 

Coway Airmega Max2 filter-a combined 

activated carbon and a True HEPA filter-

captures and reduces up to 99.999 percent 

of particles 0.01 microns in the air, including 
pollen, pollutants and other allergens. It also 

reduces more than 99 percent of volatile 

organic compounds and reduces fumes such 

as NH3 and CH3CHO. 

Coway Airmega’s pollution sensor 
communicates indoor air quality testing in 

real-time. The brightly colored LED ring lets 

you know how clean or dirty your indoor air 

is, every minute of the day. 

Coway Airmega has five fan modes: Smart, 

Sleep, Low, Medium and High. Noise level is 
nearly silent at lower speeds. Max noise at 

highest setting is 43.2 dB. 

Coway Airmega is a smart, energy efficient 

air purifier with a three-setting smart mode 

to adapt to its surroundings. Fan speed 
automatically adjusts based on the room’s 

air quality and lighting conditions to improve 

air quality. 

Coway Airmega has a timer with 1, 2, 4 and 

8 hour settings, plus indicators for filter 

lifetime for both the washable pre-filter and 



Max2 filter. 

Coway Airmega 400 is Energy Star certified 

and consumes 64 watts. 
Limited manufacturer’s warranty covers any 

internal malfunctions for 1 year and motor 

and electronic parts for 5 years. Filters are 

excluded. 

I need the exact specifications that the 

school district wants. 
 

For the RFP evaluation should pricing be 

based on the items indicated in the Special 

Instructions section 4 at the quantities 

shown there? Are the quantities shown what 

is anticipated for the term of the 
contract/one year? 

This RFP is for 3 years with a possible 

extension to 5 years. The quantities we have 

listed are the amounts that have been 

purchased last year and also anticipate for 

this year. Although, I will order as needed at 
the time, as well as considering availability. I 

will sometimes order anywhere from 500 to 

1000 boxes at the time to limited space at 

our warehouse. 

 

 Is OUSD open for N95 also? If you are, can 

OUSD change to “KN95 Masks or Similar 
N95?” The OUSD has nothing to lose; if 

KN95 price is better, you choose KN95. If 

N95 price is better, you get cheaper and 

better quality with N95. 

 

We have offered both Kn95 and N95 to staff, 

and therefore have purchased both. 

Can you pls send a list of certified local 
businesses you are familiar with for 

partnership opportunities ( we are a 

manufacturer of hand sanitizer and 

disinfectants) 

 

This is not available at this time, nor is this 
part of the RFP. Please feel free to reach out 

to our Procurement Department for further 

information. 

Will this RFP be awarded to multiple 
vendors? 

 

YES 
 

Does OUSD really want ONLY Byd Brand? 

You mentioned in the conference that you 

may be open for other brands, except for 

some specific “fit tested” department. Our 

concern is that when you stick to only one 
brand, typically, it can turn out to be a lot 

more expensive. If OUSD opens for other 

brands, can you change to something like 

“40,000 Byrd Brand Masks or Similar 

Foldable N95 Masks?” OUSD can compare 
and choose whichever price is better, and 

may potentially save lots of money. 

 

We have purchased BYD Brands, but have 

also purchased other brands due to 

availability. As mentioned, our concern is 

that there are certain masks that need to be 

"fit tested" when used by staff. 

Are equals accepted on items identified by 

brand name or only that brand? 

Yes, but when getting a different brand 

especially if we have not purchased it in the 

past, this may be a time we request a 

sample. 
 



In addition, how much filter should I offer? Possibly 1000 filter replacements for the 

units. 

 

3 Nitrile Glove: Is there a specific thickness 
you require? 

We require Nitrile gloves in sizes: small, 
medium, large and x-large. No need for 

medical grade but strong enough for 

cleaning. 

 

Alcohol Wipes: If you prefer eco-friendly and 

for kids do these need to be EPA approved? 

We would prefer eco-friendly. We have used 

alcohol prep pads for staff/students to wipe 

Face Shields. We currently also purchase 
TAZZA wipes to be used for cleaning surfaces 

and technology. Any disinfectant that we had 

purchased was EPA approved, however wipes 

and sanitizer do not go through the EPA but 

in some cases are reviewed/approved by the 
FDA. These wipes do contain the ingredients 

recommended by the FDA. 

 

Air Purifiers: How many do you need? We have currently purchased Whirlpool 

Whispure, Fellowes, Tru Crane Small 

Purifiers, as well as Coway Airmega. Our 

main air purifiers are Whirpool and Coway as 
they have been approved by the unions. We 

would like to continue with these as our 

primary purifiers. We will be purchasing 

based on the needs of the school sites, 

therefore quantities may vary. 
 

So the revised RFP will be from "Surgical 

Grade Mask" to "3-ply mask"? Do you need 

an FDA Registered company to manufacture? 

There is no need to revise the RFP as we 

would prefer the surgical grade mask, 

however availability will not always allow for 

us to receive those, therefore for staff that do 

not require surgical grade masks, we will 
take the 3-ply. 

 

If these point are not going to be assigned as 

the Local requirement is waived, how will the 

points be assigned for environmental 

sustainability 

For emergency provisions, if business is 

located within Oakland, they will be awarded 

200 points, if within Alameda County, they 

will be award 175, and all others will be 

awarded 150 points. 
 

So the revised RFP will be from "Surgical 

Grade Mask" to "3-ply mask"? Do you need 

an FDA Registered company to manufacture? 

We have purchased both N95 and Kn95, and 

currently have both in stock. I apologize if I 

am misunderstanding your question.  Prefer 

an FDA registered company. 

 

 If that is the case, would the split line item 
be an option? For example; 

N95 Masks: 4,000 Byd Brand Masks Only 

N95 Masks; 36,000 Byd Brand Mask or 

Similar N95 Masks 

(I am using 4000 as a random number as an 

example.) 

The items and quantity listed, as mentioned, 
are rough estimate. We are also aware of the 

supply and demand issue, therefore we are 

aware we cannot always get the brand 

requested. When we have to use another 

type/brand, this is when we may need to 

request a sample. 



Do you prefer "real" Surgical Mask (FDA 

Cleared), or just a regular Surgical Grade 

Mask (meaning as long as it meets Level2 or 
Level3, and no need for FDA Cleared)? Also 

should we propose for Level2 or Level3? 

 

Yes, we prefer real surgical masks, however 

due to availability we would considers others 

as long as the meet the level2 or 3. 

 If the OUSD is open to N95 as an alternative 

instead of only KN95, if the price of N95 is 

lower than KN95. Seal Fit is needed based on 

where you use the mask, regardless of N95 
or KN95; if it is in a healthcare environment, 

you will need Seal Fit even if you use KN95. 

 

We would prefer to keep the N95 and Kn95 

separate as it has been already union 

approved. 

Will you accept if we propose both BYD and 

Other N95 as a backup? That way, OUSD 

can pick and choose whatever makes sense 
to the OUSD? Is that ok? 

 

We currently have only the BYD brand, so 

hoping we can keep those, however feel free 

to propose both.  

Is there any kind of preference working with 

partners that you’ve worked with in the past? 

What are you looking for in a partner? 

RFP outlines criteria that we’re looking for. 

What we’re looking for is a track record for 

delivering PPE in a timely manner along with 

responsiveness. 

 

Can we participate in the bid with specific 

items or all items? 

The list of products listed in the RFP are the 

complete list of our needs. We may select 

multiple bids. 

 

Mask specifications – 3-ply mask with metal 

nose bar? Is this the surgical mask you are 

requiring? 
 

Yes, absolutely 

Alcohol surface wipes – what kind of 

containers do you prefer? How many wipes 

per container? 

 

Definitely containers over packages. Not sure 

of the numbers 

3-ply mask what ASTM level and filtration 

level are you looking for? 
 

We believe we have level 2 or 3. 

So if we haven’t done this for you yet, you 

will consider experience with other similar 

entities? 

 

Sizes are very important. OUSD has a full 

range of students for specialized PPE needs. 

When do you expect product delivery? 

Timeframe - January 1 to product delivery? 3 

or 4 weeks?  
 

We don’t expect to communicate with 

vendors until January. Once the contract 

has been approved, it depends on what the 
needs are before orders are made. 

 

What about the clear masks? Yes, clear masks are needed for educational 

purposes with speech issues. We prefer the 

masks that are reusable but also adjustable, 

such as with the ear loop adjustment 
 

75-100 are in containers and 400 wipes in 

tubs. In her experience 100 per canister have 

This matches our experience as well 80-100 

would be perfect 



been more popular because they can be 

easily moved around. 100 per pop-up 

container have been popular. 
 

What mil for the nitro gloves? Color? In looking at the gloves we have purchased 

we do not have mm listed for them. We do 

prefer Nitrile in Small, Medium, Large and 

XLarge and we do not have a color 

preference. 

 

Delivery to warehouse only or to specific sites Deliveries will be made to our warehouse 
only. It has a loading dock to facilitate 

deliveries 

 

Are purchases single purchases or scheduled 

purchases? 

A challenging aspect of the pandemic is 

establishing need. It’s going to be a month by 

month basis. Current guidelines are moving 
away from certain kinds of masks, depends 

on negotiations with labor partners. 

 

N95 BYRD Brand masks – didn’t find them 

anywhere but did find the Byd mask. 

Sorry, that was a typo, It should have been 

BYD masks. 

 

6 oz hand sanitizer – dispenser type was not 
specified. Pump or flip-top? 

Definitely a pump, they are much easier to 
use 

 

Is the criteria solely based on price? Not solely based on price. We have a matrix 

with value categories on the RFP and they 

will be scored. Another factor will be the 

availability and delivery time.  

 
 

Quantities are maximum? Some students are bringing their own masks 

and it depends on guidance from the county. 

We have been trying to order in large 

quantities and delivering from the warehouse 

and calculating the burn ratio 
 

Smocks? How many are Paraprofessionals and nurses and # of 

employees is about 400 in total so this gives 

you an idea of the number 

 

Will you be requiring samples of everything 

you’ll be ordering 

We typically don’t request samples unless it’s 

something new or very specific. However if it 

is a new vendor or a completely new items, 
we may request a sample especially large 

quantity/bulk purchases. 

 

Is an addendum going to be provided to the 

RFP that answers questions that have been 

asked 
 

answers will be posted in the procurement 

website by Friday 

Payment is net 60? Doesn’t usually take 60 days to get a check, 

we need to physically receive the items before 



we can submit the invoices to Accounts 

Payable. The net pay will depend on how 

quickly we receive the item(s) from you, and 
when I receive your invoice so we can start 

the P process. 

 

Washable or disposable smocks? Some are asking for each so it will be a mix 

 

Will we know exactly what your expecting or 

will you need basic pricing 

Basic pricing would be a good start and we 

can get closer to numbers 

 

Whirpool Whispure air purifiers – is there a 

model that you prefer? 

Calculations have been done on square 

footage and changes cause questions from 

staff. The Whispure 500 and we have some 

Whispure 400, but the main issue is the 

square footage. Most of the air purifiers are 

Whispure 500, although we do have some 
Whispure Pro 2000. We also have some 

Coway Airmega Purifiers that over large 

areas like cafeterias. 

 

Gloves are boxes of 100? Yes, that is the size of Nitrile Gloves we have 

received. 
 

You mentioned you weren’t satisfied with 

masks so will you be requesting sample 

masks? 

We would start with images to see the 

overview of the mask and we have requested 

overnight samples. 

 

If sourcing is an issue or if we have a 

comparable or better option, would you be 

interested in another brand? Same for other 
items? 

His would be an area where we would need 

to request a sample. Specifically for the 

masks that have been fit tested. There are 
CalOsha requirements as well. There is a 

subgroup that requires Byd masks because 

they have been fit-tested. 

 

Hand sanitizer – are you requiring any 

documentation (certificate of analysis) on the 
quality or efficacy of the products? Safety 

standards 

Not sure our Risk Management department 

handles this. We have not required it but 
some vendors have provided it. Not sure of 

our requirement but Rosaura will follow up 

and send something out. Typically from 

vendors we receive the FACT sheet for 

sanitizer. Once we receive it, we will share 

with our Risk Management Dept. 
 

wasn’t included in the RFP, in his 

experience, do you foresee a need for 

thermometers 

We invested heavily early on and the 

guidance changed so we don’t foresee a need 

for them. 

 

Sustainability and Local Scoring points - If 

these point are not going to be assigned as 
the Local requirement is waived, how will the 

points be assigned for environmental 

sustainability? 

For emergency provisions, if business is 

located within Oakland, they will be awarded 
200 points, if within Alameda County, they 

will be award 175, and all others will be 

awarded 150 points. 

 


